ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
March 8, 2005
11: 04 a.m
MEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Mark Neuman, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Bob Lynn
Representati ve Peggy W son
Representative Les Gara
Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non
Representative Bill Thomas

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 128

FQPC:\ct establishing the Al aska Schools Physical Activity Task

- MOVED HB 128 OQUT OF COW TTEE

OVERVI EW Al aska Native K-12 Education Indicators Study by AK
Native Policy Center

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 128

SHORT TITLE: SCHOOLS PHYSI CAL ACTI VI TY TASK FORCE
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) MOGUI RE

02/ 04/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 04/ 05 (H EDU, HES, FIN

02/ 24/ 05 (H) EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 24/ 05 (H -- Meeting Canceled --

03/ 03/ 05 (H EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TCL 106

03/ 03/ 05 (H Heard & Held

03/ 03/ 05 (H M NUTE( EDU)

03/ 08/ 05 (H EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -1- March 8, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE LESI L MCGUI RE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as the sponsor of HB 128.

SARAH SCANLAN, Director of Education

First Al askans Institute

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented a report on Alaska Native
popul ati on, health, econom cs, and educati on.

GRETA GOTO, Director

Al aska Native Policy Center

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented a report on Alaska Native
popul ation, health, econom cs, and educati on.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR MARK NEUMAN called the House Special Conmittee on
Education neeting to order at 11:04:05 AM Represent ati ves
Gara, Salnon, Gatto, WIson, and Lynn were present at the call
to order. Representative Thomas arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

Representatives Reggie Joule, John Coghill, and Mary Kapsner
were al so in attendance.

HB 128- SCHOOLS PHYSI CAL ACTIVITY TASK FORCE

CHAI R NEUMAN announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 128 "An Act establishing the Al aska Schools
Physical Activity Task Force."

11: 05: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA i ntroduced and noved Anendnent 1 | abeled 24-
LS0298\Y. 1, Bull ock, 3/8/ 05, which read:

Page 4, line 6:
Delete "but are entitled to"

| nsert ","
Del ete "and"
| nsert ", or"

Page 4, lines 6 - 7:

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 2- March 8, 2005



Delete "authorized for boards and conm ssions
under AS 39.20. 180"

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said Anendnent 1 clarifies that the nenbers
on the Physical Activity Task Force won't be paid and won't
receive per diem He said he doesn't think anyone desires to be
paid, and it will zero out the small fiscal note.

CHAIR NEUMAN objected to Anmendnent 1 for discussion purposes.
He said he agrees with the anmendnent and that |egal services had
sonme questions about it. He withdrew his objection and hearing
no ot hers, Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

11: 07: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LESIL MCGU RE, Al aska State Legislature, said,
"All of us are aware of the epidem c that obesity is becomng in
our country, and the saddest part is watching our young people
slip into ... a lifestyle that is very difficult to get away
from" She said there are nedical and societal costs. She and
Representative Gara net wth physicians and decided it woul d not
be fair to nandate sonething that wouldn't be funded, so they
decided that a task force would be appropriate. She said they
| ooked forward to working wth physical educators, teachers,
physi ci ans, and nenbers of the legislature to see what can be
done to tackle the obesity problemin children. She added that
there is interest fromthe heart association and ot hers.

11:10: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO commented that things are being done--he
saw a tel evision show focusing on obesity.

11:11: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUIRE commented that the Matanuska- Susitna
Borough has voluntarily introduced nutritious foods into the
school nmenu with positive reviews.

11:12: 19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she used to be a school nurse, and
she has seen a huge difference in children's weights over the
| ast 20 years. The lifestyle has changed from children running
around playing ball to sitting in front of the television, she
added. Doctors are now finding high blood pressure, high
chol esterol, and a large increase in diabetes in young kids.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 3- March 8, 2005



11:13: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said vending nachines should have healthy
f ood.

11:14: 34 AM

CHAI R NEUMAN said HB 128 asks representatives to volunteer to be
on the commttee and he encouraged nenbers to be invol ved.

11:15: 20 AM

REPRESENTATIVE GARA said 30 to 40 percent of the nation's
children are overweight, and by adulthood it increases to 70
percent. He suggested | ooking at what other states are doing to
conbat obesity, including mandating healthier food in schools.

11:17:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS asked if an ad hoc conmttee can be
created before the bill noves since there is no fiscal note.
11:18: 31 AM

REPRESENTATIVE MCGQUIRE said that people are already being
rounded up as the bill noves through the |egislative process
She said she thought a task force would bring nore publicity and
media attention than an ad hoc commttee. A task force also

adds sone structure, she added.

11:19: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noved to report HB 128, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. Hearing no objection, CS HB 128( EDU) was passed.

OVERVI EW ALASKA NATIVE K-12 EDUCATI ON | NDI CATORS STUDY BY AK
NATI VE PCOLI CY CENTER
11: 20: 43 AM

SARAH SCANLAN, Director of Education, First Alaskans Institute
(FAI), Anchorage, said the mssion of FAl is to develop the
capacities of Al aska's Native people, and it is involved in
research with the Al aska Native Policy Center. Both groups hope
to see the research findings reflected in policy.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -4- March 8, 2005



11: 21: 41 AM

M5. SCANLAN said she and Geta Goto are presenting two recent
reports: "Qur Choices-Qur Future" and "Alaska Native K-12
Education Indicators, 2004". The reports do not [|ook at
denogr aphi cs, health, education, and the econony as separate
entities, but they are intricately connected, she said.

GRETA GOTO Director, Alaska Native Policy Center, Anchorage,
said "Qur Choices-Qur Future" is an analysis of 30 years of
information on Al aska Native popul ation, health, econom cs, and

educati on. The Alaska Native population is growing, it is
young, its life expectancy has increased, the nmgjority of it
lives in rural and renote Alaska, it is nobile, and it has
changing famly structures, she reported. She said there were

120,000 Natives in Alaska in 2000, and the nunber is expected to
grow to 165,000 in 2020.

11:24: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how that growh conpares with the
rest of Al aska.

M5. GOTO said Native birthrates are higher and average |ifespan
is increasing, so it is a faster increase.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS asked for a definition of Native.

11: 26: 27 AM

M5. GOTO said anyone who is full or part Al aska Native or
Anmerican Indian is included. Peopl e self-select and determ ne
their own race during a census.

M5. GOTO said about 44 percent of Natives are under 20 years of
age, and only 33 percent of non-Natives are in that age

cat egory. There is a growing elder population anong Natives.
She added that better access to nedical care increases life
expect ancy. The trend of living arrangenents for Native

children is of nore single parental care, which is the sanme in
the entire popul ation.

M5. SCANLAN noted that this data helps the state predict its
needs for elder care, education's future requirenents, and other
future needs.

11:29: 26 AM

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 5- March 8, 2005



M5. GOTO said in 1950 the life expectancy for Al aska Natives was
46 years when other races had a life expectancy of 68 years. It
is now over 70 years for Alaska Natives. Native children are
better imunized than other Anmerican children. Certain diseases
have been sharply reduced.

M5. GOTO reported that infant nortality rates in Al aska Natives
have decreased trenendously, but there is still a disparity.
Qohesity has increased nore dramatically than other races.

CHAI R NEUMAN asked how health care and obesity correl ate.

M5. GOTO thinks it is dietary. D abetes has increased, and
snoking rates are higher than non-Natives. She di scussed Fet al
Al cohol Spectrum Di sorder (FASD) rates.

11: 34: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if FASD is a bigger problemin rura
ar eas.

11: 35: 14 AM

M5. GOTO didn't know. She said teens have simlar health
issues; there are inprovenments but the disparity wth other
races still exists. There is a higher teen pregnancy rate for
Natives. She said student snoking has gone down, but still nore
Native students snoke than non-Native, which m ght be due to the
hi gher nunber of adult snokers in the Native comrunity.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the snoking tax deters snoking.
M5. GOTO said, "It hasn't stopped ny husband.”

M5. SCANLAN said the tax is new and she hopes it wll be
reflected in future data.

11:37:13 AM

M5. GOTO said marijuana use has gone up, and she suggested
reading the report for nore detail on drug and al cohol use.

CHAI R NEUMAN asked about i nhal ants.

11:40: 11 AM

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 6- March 8, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked about a correlation between the
upswing in marijuana use and popul ation increase, because "you
mght do activities that you normally wouldn't do under the
i nfl uence of al cohol and drugs."”

M5. GOTO said she didn't think there was a correl ation.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the use of marijuana would go up
as the price of tobacco increases.

M5. GOTO said she conpiles the data and presents it to people.
M5. SCANLAN expl ained that sonme of the committee's questions are
i ssues that the studies have touched on but were not directly

anal yzed.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO wants to know the action plan in response
to the data.

11: 43: 30 AM

M5. GOTO gave credit to others for helping make this data
avai | abl e.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked about I|imted curricula in rural
school s. He wonders if there is a statewde requirement to
| earn about these issues in school.

M5. SCANLAN said there is not, and that would be very useful if
there were. She added that the data reflect |ower nunbers of
problens than reality.

11:46: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked why sone of these things can't be
taught w thout dedicated teachers and extra funds.

M5. SCANLAN stated that that is a |oaded question. She
explained that some of +the governnment prograns need to be
integrated, holistic, and with a comrunity approach.

11:49: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON stated that as a school nurse she taught
drug and al cohol prevention in every classroom This was in
anot her state. "W don't fund things" in Alaska she said. Most
school s don't even have a school nurse, she added.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -7- March 8, 2005



11:50: 51 AM

M5. SCANLAN stated that early chil dhood education with parenta
i nvol venent i s needed, and Al aska does not have such a program

M5. GOTO noted that 17 percent of the state's workforce is
Al aska Natives, and 33 percent of wunenployed Alaskans are

Nat i ves. Average incones of Nati ves and non- Nati ves
corresponds to rates of poverty--20 percent for Alaska Natives
and 7 percent for non-Natives. The cost of food and energy in

rural comunities is nmuch higher.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asks what the Power Cost FEqualization
pr ogram does.

M5. GOTO explained that it subsidizes energy costs. She said
that Natives own about 11 percent of all the business firns in
Al aska, generating about 5 percent of Al aska's business revenue.

CHAIR NEUMAN stated that high wunenploynment rates of Al aska
Natives shows a need for an outreach program in rural Al aska
He added that there are several bills in process now for
regional learning centers to nake sure there are vocational
progranms, "so we can put Al askans to work."

11:56:47 AM

M5. GOTO said Natives have increased access to education but
there is an academ c achi evenent gap, and there are actions that
are required to close that gap. The percentage of Natives
attending college and high school have dramatically increased
because there are nore high schools in rural Al aska.

11: 59: 03 AM

M5. GOTO stated that Al aska Natives do place a high value on
education, but school performance is a concern.

12: 00: 04 PM

M5. GOTO said the report also looked at the ethnicity of
educators, and there is little change.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if that woul d soon change.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 8- March 8, 2005



MS. SCANLAN said she hopes it will, because Al aska has a program
to train indigenous teachers.

12: 02: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked whi ch canpuses teach educati on

M5. SCANLAN said Sheldon Jackson, Alaska Pacific University,
University of Al aska-Southeast, University of Al aska-Anchorage,
Uni versity of Al aska-Fairbanks, and di stance delivery canpuses.

MS5. GOTO said the turnover rate of teachers and adm nistrators
is high in certain districts.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if renoteness nmakes a difference.
M5. GOTO stated that it depends nore on the school district.

M5. GOTO said that Al aska Native performance in benchmark exans
conpares poorly with other students.

12: 06: 37 PM

CHAI R NEUVAN asked how the No Child Left Behind policy affects
Native students.

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON asked what is causing the problem

M5. SCANLAN stated that there are many, nmany reasons. Fundi ng,
teacher turnover, lack of curriculum parental involvenent, |ack
of early childhood education, teacher professional devel opnent,
and goals of school boards are sone. There is also a huge
nmobility issue of kids hopping from school to school, she said.
There are 1,800 honeless children in the Anchorage school
district, and one third are Native.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA stated that problens are nbre a neasure
income | evel than ethnicity.

M5. GOTO stated that is correct, |ooking at poverty |levels there
is a correlation. Dropout rates for Native students are higher
than other students, but she thinks that trend nay be
decr easi ng. H gh school graduation rates are 47 percent for
Native students and 67 percent for all other ethnicities. "Less
than half our kids who start at ninth grade conplete [high
school ]," she said.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 9- March 8, 2005



REPRESENTATIVE WLSON asked what the expectations are of
famlies, noting that sone famlies want a subsistence lifestyle
where a high school degree m ght not be necessary.

12:13: 30 PM

MS. SCANLAN said teens are telling us that they do not see the
rel evance in what they are being taught. Enpl oynent
opportunities in renote areas don't relate to math and rote
menori zation, she added. She said students can see the val ue of
vocational training. "How we value education” is an issue. She
added that resources to identify children who need help are not
available. "Nailed on top of that is the high school qualifying
exam " she said. No Child Left Behind is causing sonme students
to drop out. She noted that there is no silver bullet and no
si ngl e answer.

CHAI R NEUVAN stated that the graduation rate is striking. He
asked where we are | osing kids along the way.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said some areas have no Head Start
pr ogr ans.

12:17:27 PM

M5. GOTO stated that she thought 100 out of over 200 communities
in rural Al aska had Head Start prograns.

CHAI R NEUMAN said statistics show Head Start works.

M5. GOTO said there are good progranms but they don't reach
everyone.

12: 18: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA stated that the |egislature should support
better funding for Head Start this year.

12:19: 32 PM

M5. SCANLAN noted that there wll be a canmpaign for early
chil dhood literacy which is very critical. Chal | enges that she
has covered today are not specific to Al aska Natives. Fundi ng

is a key issue, and she stressed the inportance of early
chi | dhood devel opnment. She suggests supporting teachers so they
can help as many students as possible. The issues are huge and

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -10- March 8, 2005



conpl ex, and she requested the ability to continue working with
| awmakers to sol ve them

12: 22: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON stated that drinking was not nentioned.

M5. GOTO responded that this is one of the issues that
comunities wanted nore information about.

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON asked about districts cutting |unch
prograns and what that effect m ght be.

12:25: 04 PM

M5. SCANLAN responded that in Title 1 schools there are federa
noni es avail able for school |unch prograns.

12:25:57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated that he is not aware of any school s
that don't provide lunch, and sone are offering breakfast. He
said the state does have early childhood education, "we do have
ki ndergarten, we do feed them we do have classes for them what
we want them to do is to arrive super duper prinmed, rested,
nouri shed, clothed properly; the trouble is we're finding them
arriving...w thout snow pants and then recess cones and they say
" don't have snow pants.'" Their parents have that
responsibility, he said. If they are hungry, they go see the
nurse for snacks. "I don't know what nore the state can do."
W have x-anmount of dollars, and every group that we neet is
saying if we had nore noney we could do better. There isn't a
group that conmes to us and tells us we are over-funding them he
declared. He said he is wishful that "we could get the parents
i nvol ved, we need sone accountability to nake them show up. W
have truancy problens, but how nuch can the schools do?" He
asked if parents are less involved in their children's education
and wel fare.

12: 28: 33 PM

M5. SCANLAN stated that it is the opposite and said naybe he
should visit schools in inpoverished districts. Many famlies
are doing the best that they can, but they thenselves are
honel ess, she said. A larger percentage of famlies do care

about their children's education. The nunbers of famlies wth
problens is a concern, however, and she said that there is a

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -11- March 8, 2005



huge draw on education funds to try to bring those students up

to the level of the others. She suggests bringing all groups
together to work for a common goal. She held up the United Way
as a nodel . W are not noving away from parental involvenent,

she said, it has to do with wellness in conmmunities and it nust
begi n at hone.

12:31: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA stated that he agrees wth all of the
statenents on early childhood education and asked for any
proposals M. Scanlan's group mght have. He said the state
made a huge mistake elimnating the early childhood education
program and any proposals she has, he encourages her to cone
and present them

12: 32: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN commented that the best early chil dhood
education begins at childbirth wwth parents. "Kids don't bel ong
to the school system kids belong to parents.” "I support all

of these things but we should never take parents out of the
equation.”

12: 33: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said there are a |ot of schools that don't
have | unches.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Speci al Commttee on Education neeting was adjourned at 12: 33PM

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -12- March 8, 2005



